
of the Paquette area have passed their land down generation upon generation
to their present descendents. Paquette, Lounsbrough, and Dufault are ex
amples of this continuing line of French prominence.

The first business venture in the area was started by Joseph Harshaw, who
bought and moved the old frame No. 4 schoolhouse to Paquette in 1894, and
transformed it into a Blacksmith shop. More recently, Dan Paquette started up
the first gas station at 'the corner' and this was later transferred to the owner
ship of Henry Thrasher, who added a general store and a repair shop to the
service station.

Hydro came to the community in December of 1925.
The two churches serving the majority of Paquette residents are the Redeem

er Anglican Church and St. Clement's Roman Catholic Church in McGregor,
further south on Walker Road.

Recreational festivities generally occur in the Orange Lodge No. 552 built
originally in 1894, and located on the sixth concession just south of the Ander-
don-Sandwich South townline. And the schoolchildren of Paqette were once
served by the SS No. 10 and SS No. 4 on the Townline Road.

The first telephone line in Sandwich South was installed in 1896, or 1897, by
a Dr. Jenner of Essex, and ran from Essex to Paquette Corners. The doctor
desired a private line on which people could call for his assistance with speed
and dependability. The line had two phones, one at his house and the other at
Cyril Paquette's residence on the other end. This telephone system was in
existence until 1910, disappearing with the advent of Municipal lines.

In 1957, the community of Paquette Corners was extended with the 'Sunny-
brook Development' creating ten new homes in two years. Lawrence Shepley
was behind this development and thus the new homes have since been termed
the 'Shepley Subdivision'.

PELTON

Pelton in its original form, no longer exists. Originally it was a community
surrounding a tower known as Pelton Junction, a switching tower located at
the point of 'junction' where the Michigan Central Railway crosses the Chesa
peake and Ohio, then known as the Pere Marquette Railway.

Fred Moore and William Washbrooke were two well-reknown tower men of
Pelton Junction, while Fred Gray, who resided in Oldcastle, was Station Fore
man in 1925, and Trueman Flexen was one of the Station Agents for a while.

The junction served a dual purpose, for besides serving as a switching yard,
it was also a message center. Telegrams were phoned out to the junction from
Windsor to people residing in the Pelton vicinity, and the agent of the station
would then relay the message by phone to its rightful recipient. Sometimes
the agent was known to deliver the messages personally if the lines were ice-
covered or downed, which occurred often in the unpredictable climate of our
region.

There had also been a post office in this small community called the 'North
Pelton', with John W. Austin as Postmaster. But it was closed on August 21,
1914 with the installation of the new 'rural routes'.

The names found prevalent in the area of Pelton Junction attest to a wide
mixture of European blood, no one strain coming out as prominent. Cole,
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Atkinson, Perrin, Battersby, Ferrari, Washbrooke, Austin and Robinson are
some of tiie more familiar names associated with the community surrounding
Pelton Junction.

Presently located at the site of the old Pelton Tower is a busy intersection
through which passes both Highway #98 and Walker Road.

FAIRPLAY AND BETHEL

The communities of Fairplay and Bethel are not centralized at any particular
crossroad or site. Generally, the two surround the Baseline Road and received
their titles from Bethel United Church built in 1888 on Baseline Road, and from
the first post office established in 1897 in that area. The post office was original
ly situated in the home of Mr. Dennis Perrin, which a Mr. Robert Hurst had
named 'Fairplay', and thereby gave the community its name.

The mail was picked up every Tuesday and Friday from Tecumseh and taken
to Mr. Perrin's home. Mr. Perrin himself delivered the mail until 1909, at which
time it was moved to the home of Sam McKenzie, and delivered by James
Quick until rural mail delivery started from Maidstone in approximately 1912.

In 1895 the 'Union Cheese Factory' was built on a corner of the Fairbairn
property, located just off of the Baseline Road and close to the Maidstone-
Sandwich South townline. It was closed in 1906 but reopened in 1908, finally
being torn down in 1927 after going out of operation for the second time. Mr.
Wood was an early president of the cheese factory and Dennis Perrin was
Secretary.

One popular personality of the Fairplay community was Louisa Payne. Louisa
lived with her parents as slaves in the United States until they found freedom in
Canada in the early 1800's. The family came to Sandwich South at the turn of
the 19th Century, and built a log house on the east side of the 9th Concession in
1807.

Miss Payne remained in this house until she died of pneumonia in 1937 at
the age of 97 years. She was buried in the Fairbairn Cemetary.

Miss Payne was best-loved by the children of the Fairplay Community.

She grew beautiful flowers and although the house and surrourid-
ings were just ready to topple over, she was always ready to show
the school childrer) passirig by, who stopped to chat with her often,
her lovely things [including stored period costumes] and perhaps
give them a rusti-coated apple, and let them play with the many
dogs and cats around. She was a big person and had a heart and
voice just as big. *84

In 1913, Mr. Thomas Fairbairn willed one acre of his land to Sandwich South
township to be used as a cemetary. Upon the township's refusal to accept the
land, it was granted to Bethel United Church, which honoured the Fairbairn
request, and turned it into a private cemetary. Many of the area's older resid
ents have been buried in the Fairbairn Cemetary located on Baseline Road.
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